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Management’s’ statement

The Executive and Supervisory Boards have today considered and adopted the Annual Report of Forward
Pharma A/S (the “Company” or the Parent) for the financial year ended December 31, 2016.

The Annual Report is prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as
adopted by the European Union (“EU”) and additional disclosure requirements of the Danish Financial
Statements Act.

It is our opinion that the Company’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the Company’s
financial position as of December 31, 2016, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Further, in our opinion, the Management's review gives a fair review of the matters discussed in the
Management's review.

We recommend that the Annual Report be adopted at the Annual General Meeting.

Copenhagen, 17 April 2017

Executive Board

Claus Bo Svendsen Joel Sendek Rupert Sandbrink

Supervisory Board

Florian Schonharting Torsten L. Goesch Jan G J. van de Winkel
Chairman
Grant Hellier Lawrence Jakob Mosegaard Larsen Duncan Moore

Karen Smith



Independent auditor's report

To the shareholders of Forward Pharma A/S
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Forward Pharma A/S for the financial year 1 January -31
December 2016, which comprise a Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, statement
of Other Comprehensive Loss, Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, Statement of Cash Flow and
notes, including accounting policies. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and additional disclosure requirements
of the Danish Financial Statements Act.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company at
31 December 2016 and of the results of the Company's operations and cash flows for the financial year 1
January — 31 December 2106 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the EU and additional disclosure requirements of the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) and additional
requirements applicable in Denmark. Our responsibilities under those standards and requirements are
further described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements" section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and additional requirements
applicable in Denmark, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
rules and requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Statement on the Management's review

Management is responsible for the Management's review.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Management's review, and we do not express
any assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Management's
review and, in doing so, consider whether the Management's review is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Moreover, it is our responsibility to consider whether the Management's review provides the information
required under the Danish Financial Statements Act.

Based on our procedures, we conclude that the Management's review is in accordance with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Danish Financial Statements
Act. We did not identify any material misstatements of the Management's review.

Management's responsibilities for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and additional
disclosure requirements of the Danish Financial Statements Act and for such internal control as
Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Independent auditor's report



In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements unless Management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs and additional requirements applicable in Denmark will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs and additional requirements applicable in Denmark,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion is based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the financial statements, including the note
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that gives a true and fair view.

Independent auditor's report

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Copenhagen, 17 April 2017

ERNST & YOUNG

Godkendt Revisionspartnerselskab
CVR no. 3070 02 28

Claus Kronbak
State Authorised
Public Accountant



Management's review

Historically, the objective of Company was to develop and commercialize innovative pharmaceutical
products for the treatment of immune related diseases such as multiple sclerosis (“MS”). As discussed
elsewhere herein, subsequent to December 31, 2016, the Company entered into a Licensing and Settlement
Agreement (the “License Agreement”) with two wholly owned subsidiaries of Biogen, Inc. (collectively
“Biogen”). The Licensing Agreement will have a significant effect on the future operations of the Company.
See Notes to the financial statements.

This Annual Report includes only parent company financials. Forward Pharma A/S is referred to herein as
the “Company” or “Parent”. Forward Pharma A/S and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to herein as
the “Group.” Amounts reported herein are stated in United States Dollars (“USD”) unless otherwise stated.
The Company is required to file Group consolidated financial statements with the US Securities and
Exchange Commission that are included in the Company’s Form 20-F but are not part of this Annual
Report.

The financial statements for the year 2016 show an operating loss of $40.3 million compared to $23.3
million in 2015. The increased operating loss in 2016 was the result of higher operating expenses primarily
research and development costs. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the net loss before tax was $9.4
million compared to $51.4. million in 2015. The reduction in net loss before tax in 2016 was primarily the
result of the reversal of the previously recognized impairment loss of the Company’s investment in Forward
Pharma GmbH. Further, in 2016 the Company recorded an income tax benefit of $11.4 million resulting
from a change in estimate of the recoverability of deferred tax assets. Based on the factors discussed herein.
The Company’s net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $2.0 million compared to a net loss
of $51.1 million in 2015.

As many of the development activities have been carried out through the wholly owned subsidiary in
Germany the investment in the subsidiary is a major part of the financial statements of this year.

Developments during the year

As of December 31, 2016 the Company held cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments of
approximately 136.9 million USD and accordingly we have the ability to fund our operations beyond the
next twelve months. The Company has been developing FP187, a proprietary formulation of dimethyl
fumarate (“DMF”) for the treatment of several inflammatory and neurological indications, including MS.
Since our founding in 2005, we have worked to advance unique formulations and dosing regimens of DMF,
an immune modulator, as a therapeutic to improve the health and well-being of patients with immune
disorders, including MS. During 2016 we continued our research and development efforts to advance FP187
by conducting additional preclinical and clinical studies. We also continued our focus to strengthen our
intellectual property as several additional patent claims were submitted to support FP187 in the United
States and Europe. As discussed below, subsequent to December 31, 2016 there were events that occurred
that will materially affect the Company’s operations in the future.

Subsequent events

As discussed in more details in the notes to the financial statements, subsequent to December 31, 2016, the
Company entered into the License Agreement, executed an addendum to the patent transfer agreement
with Aditech Pharma AG and executed a termination agreement with Forward Pharma GmbH. In March
2017, the Company announced that it will be finishing research and development projects that were
underway at December 31, 2016 awaiting the outcome of patent claims and disputes in the United States
and Europe. In addition, on March 31, 2017 the Unites States Patent Trial and Appeals Board issued a
decision on a patent matter between the Company and Biogen that was in favor of Biogen. The Company
intends to appeal the decision. See Note 5.3 to the financial statements.



Statement of Financial Position

as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

December 31,
Notes 2016 2015
USD‘000  USD ‘000
Assets
0 U] o] 9= 0| S 3.3 248 —
Available-for-sale fiNaNCial ASSELS..........cciuiiiiiiiii i s 4.3 — 82,746
B LC < =0 [ =) O 0= RO 2.3 13,708 —
INVESEMENT IN SUBSIIAITES ..ottt e s s s b e e sbae e e 4.4 47,360 9,146
TOtal NON-CUITENT BSSELS......cuveieeiiiceeeceeeetteseeeeetteeeree et e srteestessbeesbeesssessaaessnaessessnsessreeenss 61,316 91,892
PrEDAYIMENTS ...ttt sb et e et e ra e e e et e e e e nreas 521 612
INCOME LAX FTECEIVAIIE. ..o ittt s e et s s aesaae s e sae e sanbeeas 2.3 — 158
OthEY FECERIVADIES......c et bbe e e s saree e saees 3.2 368 552
INtercompany rECEIVADIES. ........cciiiiieee e aesre e sre e e s e 113 675
Available-for-sale finanNCial @SSELS.........ccuviveieeiiicie ettt s eraeesabe e 4.3 80,825 41,637
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENES.........c.coviiie e et nne s 56,060 44,407
TOLAl CUITENT GSSELS......eiiiteeiiieceee et e et e eree et te e etes et e sateestessabeesbee s sessnaessnsessesssesesnrenas 137,887 88,041
01 7= I S TR 199,203 179,933
December 31,
Notes 2016 2015

USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Equity and Liabilities

S T= TN o= o - | TSRS SRP 41 818 814
I T2 T o= 0T o RSP 339,938 339,828
Other components of equity:

Foreign currency translation rESEIVE .........oovveeeieieireeier e (42,126)  (35,715)

Fair value adjustment available-for-sale financial assets..........ccocvevvcvvvvevinninns 218 102
ACCUMUIGLE AEFICIT. ..ttt e e (109,191) (128,334)
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent.............cccocevvnveeniiciinciese e 189,657 176,695
QLI = o 0 OSSR 189,657 176,695
Trade payables and accrued EXPENSES .........ccveveirreeerireee et sees e 34 5,921 3,238
INCOME taX PAYADIE. ... ce et s enas 23 201 —
INEErCOMPANY [OBN........eiiiiicie et eense e e e nneenn 4.3 3,424 —
CUITENE lBDIHTHIES. ...viveeieee e s 9,546 3,238
TOtAl [HADHTTIES....ceceieeeeeee et et e e et 9,546 3,238
Tota equity and [HabilitieS......cccoeierereee e e e 199,203 179,933

See accompanying notes to these financia statements



Statement of Profit or Loss

for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Notes 2016 2015
USD ‘000  USD ‘000

Other operating iNCOME ......cccceveeiiiiie e e 133 177
Research and development COSES........coovvvreveereresceeninnnns 21,22 (27,315)  (13,983)
Genera and adminiStrative COStS......covevrererieieriereseeienenns 21,22,51 (13,126) (9,504)
(@] o7 = ] gTe [l [0 1SS (40,308)  (23,310)
Exchangerate gain, Net........ccoooeveevieeecenie e 814 11,978
Recovery gain (impairment loss) of investment in

SUDSIAIANTES ...ttt 4.4 29,808  (40,375)
INEErESt INCOME ..ot 389 438
Other fiNaNCE COSS ....vvvviririreeriee e e (87) (132)
Net [0SS DEfOre taX .....ccvvevviieeririereesc e (9,384) (51,401)
Income tax bBenefit ..o 2.3 11,416 336
Net income (10ss) for the year ........cccocvvevvevcnien e, 2,032 (51,065)
Net income (loss) for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent ............ccooveevvveveineeniseies 2,032 (51,065)

See accompanying notes to these financia statements




Statement of Other Comprehensive L oss

for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Net income (10SS) fOr the YA .......ccocvvvviii i

Other comprehensive loss

Other comprehensiveincome (10ss) to be reclassified to profit or lossin
subsequent periods:

Changein fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.........c.cccecvveunnne 4.3

Exchange differences on trandation of foreign operations.............c.cc.......

Net other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to profit or lossin
SUDSEQUENE PEITOAS. ...t s

Other comprenenSIVE 10SS.........cviiiiiecececc e

Total COMPreNENSIVE 0SS ........cvveeereireee e e ens

Attributable to:

Notes 2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000

2,032 (51,065)

116 340

(6,411)  (24,291)

(6,295)  (23,951)

(6,295)  (23,951)

(4263)  (75,016)

(4,263)  (75,016)

Equity holders of the Parent ..........ccccveviiiiiiie s

See accompanying notes to these financia statements




At Janu

ary 1, 2015.......

Net loss for theyear .....

Other comprehensive
income (l0s3).............

Total comprehensive
income (l0s3) ............

Issuance of deferred

At Janu

ary 1,2016......

Net income for the

year

Other comprehensive
income (10s9).............

Total comprehensive
income (l0sg) ............

Issuance of deferred

Tax benefit from
share-based
payment costs...........

Transactionswith

Statement of Changesin Shareholders’ Equity

for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Fair value
Foreign adjustment
currency available-for-
Share Share trandation salefinancial Accumulated Total
Notes capital premium reserve assets deficit equity
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
809 339,678 (11,424) (238) (90,808) 238,017
— — — — (51,065) (51,065)
— — (24,291) 340 — (23,951)
— — (24,291) 340 (51,065) (75,016)
4.1 2 — — — — 2
4.1 3 150 — — — 153
2.2 — — — — 13,539 13,539
5 150 — — 13,539 13,694
814 339,828 (35,715) 102 (128,334) 176,695
814 339,828 (35,715) 102 (128,334) 176,695
— — — — 2,032 2,032
— — (6,411) 116 — (6,295)
— — (6,411) 116 2,032 (4,263)
4.1 2 — — — _ 2
4.1 2 110 — — — 112
22 — — — — 14,288 14,288
— — — — 2,823 2,823
4 110 — — 17,111 17,225
818 339,938 (42,126) 218 (109,191) 189,657

See accompanying notes to these financia statements
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Statement of Cash Flows

for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Notes 2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000

Operating activities:

N[ A L01SS] o= o £ 7 SRR (9,384) (51,401)
Adjustments to reconcile | oss before tax to net cash flow:

Other finance costs including foreign exchange rate gain (10ss) ......... (1,203) (12,416)
Share-based PaymMeNnt COSES.......coiurirmrimniine e e e e e, 2.2 9,665 6,598
(Recovery gain) impairment loss of investment in subsidiaries........... (29,808) 40,375
Cash iNflOW INEEIESt ........coveii e e e e, 1,006 1,452
Cash INFIOW LBXES.......couereiierie et e e e, 291 466
(Increase) decrease in other receivables and prepayments.................. 702 (379)
Increasein trade and other payables.........ccccovvverieveveie e, 6,227 1,197
Net cash flows used in operating actiVities..........ccoceveeievevecieeeennen, (22,504)  (14,108)
Investing activities:

INvestMENt iN SUDSIAIAIY .......covevereeiecc et 4.4 (5,538) (28,119
Proceeds from the maturity of available-for-sale financial assets....... 41,201 43,412
Net cash flows provided by investing activities.........ccccoceveeeveneennnn, 35,663 15,293
Financing activities:

Sharesissued fOr CasN.........coeeiiirere e, 4.1 114 155
Net cash flows from financing actiVities.........ccccceveveevenieseeieseen, 114 155
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents.........ccccvveveeevevecie e e, 13,273 1,340
Net foreign exchange differences........cccovvviive v, (1,620) (976)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1..........ccccvevieevevenieiienseesiennns 44,407 44,043
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31.........ccveveeeveriiesneninenienns 56,060 44,407

See accompanying notes to these financia statements
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Notesto Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Forward Pharma A/S, (the “Company” or the “Parent”), is alimited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Denmark. The registered office is located in Copenhagen, Denmark. The financia statementsincluded herein are
those of the Company. The Company’s wholly-owned Danish, German and United States of America subsidiaries
Forward Pharma FA ApS, Forward Pharma GmbH and Forward Pharma USA, LLC, respectively, are reflected in the
accompanying parent company financial statements as an investment carried at cost unless the investment has been
impaired. The Company’s Board of Directors authorized the issuance of the parent financial statements included
herein on April 17, 2017.

Asdiscussed in more detail below, the Company entered into a Settlement and License Agreement (the “License
Agreement”) with two wholly owned subsidiaries of Biogen, Inc. (collectively “Biogen”). Prior to entering into the
License Agreement, the Company was actively developing FP187, a proprietary formulation of dimethyl fumarate
("DMF"), for the treatment of multiple sclerosis (“MS”) patients. The Licensing Agreement provides Biogen with a
co-exclusive license in the United States, and an exclusive license outside the United States, to the Company’s
intellectua property. As aresult of entering into the License Agreement, the future development and sale by the
Company of FP187 or another DM F-containing formulation (collectively “DMF Formulation”) is uncertain at this
time and will be determined based on the outcome of matters discussed further below. Under certain conditions, the
Company may decide to reinitiate the devel opment of FP187, or initiate the devel opment of another DMF
formulation; currently, development of a DMF Formulation for the United States market will be limited to finishing
the research and development work that was in process prior to the effective date of the License Agreement.

The Company announced on March 1, 2017 plansto finish its remaining research and devel opment efforts and pursue
an organizationa realignment to reduce personnel and operating expenses by mid-year 2017.

Settlement and License Agreement

On February 1, 2017, the License Agreement with Biogen and certain additional parties became effective. The
License Agreement provides Biogen with a co-exclusive license in the United States, and an exclusive license outside
the United States, to the Company’s intellectual property, effective as of February 9, 2017. Biogen also is required, if
certain conditions are met within the time period set forth in the License Agreement, including the termination or
expiration of any required waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvement Act of 1976, (“HSR
Act”), to obtain an exclusive license to the Company’ s intellectual property in the United States.

In accordance with the License Agreement, Biogen paid the Company a non-refundable fee of $1.25 billion (“Non-
refundable Fee”) in February 2017, and could be obligated to pay the Company royaltiesin the future subject to the
outcome of certain matters discussed below.

On April 13, 2015, an administrative patent judge at the United States Patent Trial and Appeal Board (“PTAB”)
declared Patent Interference No. 106,023 (“Interference Proceeding”) between the Company’ s United States Patent
Application No. 11/567,871 and United States Patent No. 8,399,514 held by a subsidiary of Biogen, Inc. The License
Agreement does not resolve the Interference Proceeding between the Company and Biogen or the pending opposition
proceeding against the Company’ s European patent EP2801355 (*“ Opposition Proceeding”). The Company and
Biogen intend to permit the PTAB and the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit (“Federa Circuit”),
as applicable, and the European Patent Office (“EPQO”) and the Technica Board of Appea and the Enlarged Board of
Appeal, as applicable, to make final determinations in the proceedings before them. If the Company is successful in
the Interference Proceeding and/or the Opposition Proceeding, it will be eligible to receive royalties starting as early
as 2021 based on Biogen’s net sales of DM F-containing products indicated for treating M S as defined in the License
Agreement, provided that other conditions of the License Agreement are satisfied within the time period set forth in
the License Agreement.

If the Company is successful in the Interference Proceeding (i.e., the Company obtains, as aresult of the Interference
Proceeding and any appeals therefrom to the Federal Circuit (including en banc review), a patent with aclaim
covering oral treatment of MS with 480 mg/day of DMF), and if Biogen obtains an exclusive licensein the United

12



States, the Company may be eligible beginning on January 1, 2021 to collect a 10% royalty (increasing to 20% from
January 1, 2029) until the earlier of the expiration or invalidation of the patents defined in the License Agreement, on
Biogen's net salesin the United States of DM F-containing products indicated for treating M S that, but for the rights
granted under the License Agreement, would infringe a Company patent, provided that other conditions of the License
Agreement are satisfied. Among the conditions that need to be satisfied for any royalty to be payable by Biogen to the
Company is the absence of generic entry having a particular impact as defined in the License Agreement. If Biogen
obtains an exclusive license in the United States, the Company would likely permanently discontinue devel opment of
aDMF Formulation.

If the Company is successful in the Interference Proceeding, but certain conditions are not met in the United States,
including if restraints are placed on Biogen as aresult of the process under the HSR Act, and if Biogen does not
obtain an exclusive license, the Company could reinitiate the devel opment of a DMF Formulation for salein the
United States under a co-exclusive license with Biogen, which the Company may assign, on one occasion only, to a
singlethird party. Under the co-exclusive license, the Company would be eligible beginning on January 1, 2023 to
collect royalties of 1% on Biogen’ s net salesin the United States of DM F-containing products indicated for treating
MSthat, but for the rights granted under the License Agreement, would infringe a Company patent, provided that
other conditions of the License Agreement are satisfied. Among the conditions that need to be satisfied for any royalty
to be payable by Biogen to the Company is the absence of generic entry having a particular impact as defined in the
License Agreement. If the Company is unsuccessful in the Interference Proceeding after any appeal's, the Company
would not be entitled to future royalties on Biogen's net salesin the United States. Moreover, if Biogen prevailsin the
Interference Proceeding and inter partes review (“1PR"), after any appeals to the Federal Circuit, the Company may be
prevented from commercializing FP187 for MSin the United States at 480 mg per day dose. Were thisto occur, the
Company would review opportunities to devel op other DM F-containing formulations and products, including
generics, consistent with the terms of the Licensing Agreement. If the Company is unable to commercialize FP187 or
any other product for sale in the United States, the Company would be unable to generate any revenue from such a
product.

If the Company is successful in the Opposition Proceeding (i.e., the Company obtains, as a result of the Opposition
Proceeding, and any appeals therefrom, a patent with a claim covering ora treatment of MS with 480 mg/day of
DMF), it would be €eligible beginning on January 1, 2021 to collect a 10% royalty (increasing to 20% from January 1,
2029) until the earlier of the expiration or invalidation of the patents defined in the License Agreement, on a country-
by-country basis on Biogen's net sales outside the United States of DM F-containing products indicated for treating
MS that, but for the rights granted under the License Agreement, would infringe a Company patent, provided that
other conditions of the License Agreement are satisfied. Among the conditions that need to be satisfied for any royalty
to be payable by Biogen to the Company is the absence of generic entry in a particular geography having a particular
impact as defined in the License Agreement. If the Company is unsuccessful in the Opposition Proceeding, the
Company would not be entitled to future royalties on Biogen’s net sales outside the United States.

On March 31, 2017, the PTAB issued a decision in the Interference Proceeding in favor of Biogen. The PTAB ruled
the claims of Patent Application No. 11/567,871 are not patentable due to alack of adequate written description. The
Company intends to appeal the decision to the Federal Circuit,

The receipt of the Non-refundabl e Fee triggered a $25 million obligation payable to Aditech Pharma AG in
accordance with the patent transfer agreement and addendum to the patent transfer agreement between the Company
and Aditech Pharma AG. See Note 5.2. In addition, Management concluded that at December 31, 2016 it was
probabl e the Company would have taxable profit in 2017 thereby enabling the Company to recognize certain deferred
tax assetsthat historically did not meet the criteria for recognition. See Note 2.3.

Public listing of American Depositary Shares

During the fourth quarter of 2014 the Company completed theinitia public offering (“1PO”) of American Depositary
Shares (“ADS’) representing ordinary shares of the Company in the United States and issued 11.2 million ADSs at a
price per ADS of $21.00 to investors. The PO proceeds total ed approximately $235 million before deducting the
underwriters’ commission and other direct and incremental costs associated with the IPO. Each ADS represents one
ordinary share with a per share nomina value of 0.10 Danish Kroner (“DKK"). Each ordinary share is entitled to one
vote.

13



Section 1 Basis of Presentation
1.1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The accompanying financia statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted in the European Union and include disclosures required for
Danish Class B entities. These parent financia statements are those of the Company only and therefore the
Company’ s wholly-owned subsidiaries are reflected herein as investments. As the result of the Company’ssize, itis
exempt from preparing consolidated financial statements under Danish accounting legidation.

The financia statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for available-for-sale financial assets
that have been measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The financia statements are presented in
U.S. Dallars (“USD") and al values are rounded to the nearest thousand (USD’ 000), except when otherwise
indicated.

Foreign Currencies

The Company’ sfinancia statements are presented in USD which is not the functional currency of the Company. The
Company has elected USD as the presentation currency due to the fact that the Company haslisted ADSs on the
Nasdag Global Select Exchange, or NASDAQ, in the United States, under the ticker symbol “FWP.”

In the trangdlation to the presentation currency assets and liabilities are translated to USD using the closing rate as of
the date of the statements of financia position whileincome and expense items for each statement presenting profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated into USD at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising from such trand ation are recognized directly in other comprehensive loss and presented in a
separate reservein equity.

The Company’s functional currency isthe DKK. Transactionsin foreign currencies areinitially recorded by the
Company in DKK using the spot rate at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are trandlated at the functional currency spot rate at each reporting date.
Differences arising on settlement or trandlation of monetary items denominated in foreign currency are recognized in
the statement of profit or loss within “Exchange rate gain (loss).” Included in the exchange rate gain, net within the
Statement of Profit and Loss for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are exchange rate |osses of
$1.6 million and $1.4 million respectively.

Share-based Compensation

Employees, board members and consultants (who provide services similar to employees) of the Company receive
remuneration in the form of equity settled awards whereby services are rendered as consideration for equity awards
(warrants, deferred shares or share options). Thefair value of these equity-settled awardsis determined at the date of
grant resulting in afixed fair value at grant date that is not adjusted for future changes in the fair value of the equity
awards that may occur over the service period. Fair value of warrants and options is determined using the Black
Scholes model while fair value of deferred sharesis determined as fair value of the underlying shares |ess present
value of expected dividend.

Non-employee consultants of the Company have received equity settled awards in the form of share options as
remuneration for services. Thefair value of these equity-settled awards is measured at the time services are rendered
using the Black Scholes model. Under this method, the fair value is determined each quarter over the service period
until the award vests.

The Company has never granted cash settled awards.

The cost of share-based payments for awards granted to Company employees, board members and consultants is
recognized as an expense together with a corresponding increase in equity over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. In the event that equity instruments are granted conditionally upon an equal
number of equity instruments granted in prior periods not being exercised, they are treated as a new grant for the
current period and a modification of the equity instruments granted in the prior period. For equity instruments that are
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modified or replaced, in addition to recognizing any unamortized prior costs, the incremental value, if any, that results
from the modification is recognized as an expense over the period in which performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled or immediately if there are no performance and/or service conditions to be fulfilled.

Thefair value of equity-settled awardsis reported as compensation expense pro rata over the service period to the
extent such awards are estimated to vest. No cost is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest.

The cost of share-based compensation for employees and consultants of the German and US subsidiaries are
recognized as an increase in the carrying val ue of the Company’s investment in subsidiary with a corresponding
increasein equity.

Employee benefits
Employee benefits are primarily made up of salaries and share-based payments. These costs are recognized as
expenses as services are delivered. Average number of employees of the Company for each of the years ended

December 31, 2016 and 2015 were 5 and 4 respectively.

Classification of Operating Expensesin the Statement of Profit or Loss
Research and devel opment costs

Research and devel opment costs primarily comprise salary and related expenses, including share-based payment
expense, license, patent and other intellectua property-related costs incurred in connection with patent claims and
other intellectual property rights conducted by patent registry offices (for example the United States Patent and
Trademark Office (“USPTQ"), the EPO or other country-specific patent registry offices), manufacturing costs of
pre-commercial product used in research, clinical costs, and depreciation of equi pment, to the extent that such costs
are related to the Company’ s research and development activities.

If expensesincurred are associated with the Company’s intellectual property-related activities carried out in the courts
to protect, defend and enforce granted patent rights against third parties (excluding activities and proceedings
conducted within the USPTO, EPO or other country-specific patent registry offices) (“Court Expenses’) they are
classified within general and administrative expenses. Court Expenses incurred for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015 totaled $315,000 and $602,000 respectively.

Capitalized patent and devel opment costs

The Company’ s research and devel opment activities have concentrated on the development of unique formulations of
DMF for the treatment of immune disorders and include al patent office-related activities regarding the Company’s
patent estate development (e.g., interference proceedings, oppositions and new patent developments). For all periods
presented herein, the Company did not capitalize patent costs or FP187 development costs and consequently expensed
such costs as incurred given the inherent uncertainty in drug devel opment and commercidization.

General and administrative costs
General and administrative costs relate to the administration of the Company and comprise saaries and related
expenses, including share-based payment expense, investor relations, other costs associated with our public listing of

ADSsin the United States and depreciation of equipment, to the extent such expenses are related to the Company’s
administrative functions as well as Court Expenses.

Income Taxes
Current income tax
Tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to

the taxation authorities within one year from the date of the statement of financial position. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation or “uncertainty” and establishes provisions where appropriate. To date, there
have been no provisions established for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is redlized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available in the future against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities of the same tax jurisdiction are offset if alegally enforceable right existsto set off.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it isno
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it
has become probabl e that future taxabl e profits will alow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Based on the re-
assessment performed at December 31, 2016, the Company recognized certain previously unrecognized deferred tax
assets to the extent recovery was probable. In reaching this conclusion, Management considered the probability of
future taxabl e profits considering the Licensing Agreement. See Note 2.3.

Deferred tax relating to items recogni zed outside the profit or lossis recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

During the period from January 19, 2013 to December 31, 2015, the Company was subject to a Danish joint taxation
group with Tech Growth Invest ApS (see Notes 2.3 and 5.2) and entities under Tech Growth Invest ApS's control
(collectively “Tech Growth™). Under the joint taxation group, the Company received a refund equal to the tax benefit
realized by Tech Growth from Tech Growth’s utilization of the Company’s tax |osses at the applicabl e corporate tax
rate to the extent that the tax losses reduced the taxable income of Tech Growth. An entity that was part of Tech
Growth experienced a change in ownership on December 31, 2015. As aresult of the change in ownership, the year
ended December 31, 2015 wasthe fina year in which the Company received a refund equal to the tax benefit realized
by Tech Growth from Tech Growth’ s utilization of the Company’ s tax losses. On January 1, 2016, the Company
became part of a new Danish joint taxation group with NB FP Investment General Partner ApS and Forward Pharma
FA ApS.

Equipment

Equipment, which includes computers, office equipment, furniture and manufacturing equipment, is stated at cost, net
of accumulated depreciation. Manufacturing equipment is owned by the Company and placed in service for the use of
Company vendors who provide contract manufacturing services to the Company. There have been no impairment

| osses recognized by the Company since the inception of the Company.

Depreciation is calcul ated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the underlying assets of two to
eight years. Theresidual values of equipment are not material.

The useful life of and method of depreciation of equipment are reviewed by management at |east each year end or
more often based on changes in facts or circumstances that may result and are adjusted prospectively as changesin
accounting estimates. For all periods presented herein, changes in accounting estimates for equipment were
immaterial.

Investment in subsidiaries

Investmentsin subsidiaries are carried at cost lessimpairment. Impairment testing is performed if thereis an
indication that the Company’s investment in asubsidiary is not recoverable such as situations where the subsidiary is
experiencing recurring losses and profitability is not anticipated or the Company’ s investment exceeds the net book
value of assetsin the subsidiary. If an investment in subsidiary is deemed to beimpaired, the carrying value of the
investment in subsidiary is written down to the estimated recoverable amount. For investments that have been
impaired, Management will reassess recoverability at each subsequent period end and reverse prior impairment lossto
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the extent that the estimated recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount, but only to the extent that the
recoverable amount does not exceed the original cost. See Note 4.4.

Financial Assets.
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets that meet certain criteriaare classified at initial recognition as either financia assets at fair value
through profit or loss, available-for-sale financia assets held to maturity, investments or receivables. The Company’s
financial assetsinclude cash, cash equivalents, other receivables and available-for-sd e financia assets. The Company
does not hold assets that have been classified at fair value through profit or loss or held to maturity. Generally, the
Company’ s financial assets are available to support current operations; however, amounts expected to be realized
within the next twelve months are classified within the statement of financia position as current assets. Certain
available-for-sale financia assets have historically been classified within the statement of financial position as
non-current assets as management had no intention or business reason to dispose of these financial assets before their
maturities which were in excess of twelve months. The Company has no derivative financial assets nor has there been
achange in classification of afinancial asset after initia recognition and measurements as discussed herein. Financial
assets are not acquired for trading or speculative purposes and available-for-sale financia assets are expected to be
held until maturity.

The Company’ s financia assets are recognized initialy at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financia asset, if any.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification. After initial measurement, loans and
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Historically the Company’s
receivables are due within a short period of time and therefore the impact of using the effective interest rate method on
the Company’ s financia statements has been immaterial. The Company has no loans. This category also appliesto
cash and cash equival ents that comprise cash at banks available on demand.

Available-for-sa e financial assets include government issued debt instruments. After initial recognition, they are
carried at fair value with changesin fair value from period to period recognized in other comprehensive income.
Interest earned from avail able-for-sale financial assetsis reported as interest income using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial asset impairment

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there has been objective evidence that afinancial
asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. Impairment losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of
impairment and the evidence indicates that estimated future cash flows will be negatively impacted. For financial
assets held at amortized costs, the amount of loss to be recognized in the financia statements is measured as the
difference between the carrying value of the financia asset and the present value of the expected cash flows of the
financial asset using the original effective interest rate. For each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the
Company did not experience an impairment of afinancial asset. For impaired available-for-sale financial assets, the
amount of 1oss to be recognized is measured as the difference between the carrying value of the available-for-sale
financial asset and itsfair value.

Financial Liabilities

The Company’s financid liabilitiesinclude trade payables related to the Company’ s purchase of products and services
from various vendorsin the normal course of business. The Company’ s trade payables include payment terms that
generally do not exceed 30 days. Trade payables areinitially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method in the event a vendor has provided extended payment terms to
the Company. Historically none of the Company’ s vendors have provided extended payment terms and therefore the
application of the effective interest method did not impact the Company’s financial statements.
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Other Receivables

Other receivables primarily comprise value added tax (“VAT") receivables and accrued interest income on
available-for-sale financia assets. Other receivables that are not financial assets are recognized and measured at cost
lessimpairment losses, if any. There have been no impairment losses in the financial periods presented. For more
information on other receivables see Note 3.2.

I ntercompany Receivables and L cans
Intercompany receivables are measured at cost |ess any impairment losses. Intercompany |oans are measured at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks available on demand.

Statement of Cash Flow

The statement of cash flows is presented using the indirect method. The statement of cash flows shows cash flows
used in operating activities, cash flows used in investing activities, cash flows from financing activities, and the
Company’s cash and cash equivalents at the beginning and end of the year.

Cash flows used in operating activities primarily comprise the net loss for the year adjusted for non-cash items, such
as share-based compensation expense, depreciation expense and foreign exchange gains and losses as well as changes
in working capital.

Cash flows used in investing activities are comprised primarily of payments relating to equipment purchases and the
investment in or maturity of available-for-sale financia assets.

Cash flows from financing activities includes the proceeds from share i ssuances.

Other Operating | ncome
Other operating income consists of management fees from the German subsidiary. Management fees are recognized
on an accrual basis. There are no management fees due from our United States or Danish subsidiaries.

1.2 Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of income, expenses, assets and liabilities, as well as the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require amaterial adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments made in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’ s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements. Refer to the Note(s) for more
details:

Research and development costs not eligible for capitalization Note 1.1
Deferred tax assets Note 2.3
Investment in subsidiary Note 4.4

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financia year, are listed below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on information avail able when the
financial statements were prepared.
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Management has determined that the following items are subject to a high degree of estimation uncertainty and are
significant to the financial statements:

Valuation of share-based PayMENL..........cccvieeierieieee e seeseenes Note 2.2
DEFEITEOO 1AX @SSELS......vetereeitestesie sttt st e e e et et et s e e bt e he st beehe st beebe s et beebesbenbesbesbebeseeseanes Note 2.3
INVESIMENT TN SUDSIAIAIY ..o.veeviiiie sttt st ettt e s e s reeaeereenreenbenrean Note 4.4

1.3 New and Amendmentsto Accounting Standar ds
Sandards effective in 2016:

New standards and amendments to standards and interpretations (collectively “Amendments”’) were issued by the
IASB that became effective during 2016 or subsequent to December 31, 2016. None of the Amendments effective
during 2016 had an effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Standardsissued but not yet effective:

The future adoption of the Amendments that become effective on or after January 1, 2017 are currently not expected
to have a material effect on the Company’sfinancia statements; however, as discussed below, the future adoption of
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”), IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“1FRS 15") and/or
IFRS 16 Leases (“IFRS 16”) could have amateria effect on the Company’s financial statements. Management’s
current expectation isthat Amendments will be adopted by the Company when mandated; however, Management is
evaluating whether to adopt IFRS 15 on January 1, 2017.

IFRS 9: This standard addresses the accounting for financial assets and liabilities including their classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Company does not anticipate adopting IFRS 9 before the
mandatory effective date of January 1, 2018. The impact on the Company’sfinancial statements of the future adoption
of IFRS 9 will be determined based on facts and circumstances that exist at the time of adoption that cannot be
predicted currently. The only financial instruments held by the Company at December 31, 2016 that would be affected
by IFRS 9 are the avail able-for-sale financial assets that are currently measured each reporting period at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Management’ s preliminarily position is that the available-for-sale financial
assets held at December 31, 2016 would meet the definition under IFRS 9 to be accounted for under the amortized
cost category. In reaching this preliminary position, management considered the Company’ s historic investment
activity, current investment policies and intent to not sell the available-for-sale financial assets prior to maturity and
believes that the appropriate business model assessment would result in the conclusion that the Company’ s financia
assets are held to collect contractual cash flows. The effect of using amortized cost to account for the Company’s
available-for-sale financia assets at December 31, 2016 would eliminate the need to carry such assets at fair value
resulting in areversa of cumulative fair value beneficial adjustment of the available-for-sal e assets with a
corresponding reduction in other components of equity of $218,000. In addition, the benefit reflected in the statement
of comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 from the change in fair value of the available-for-sale
financial assets would be eliminated. The future adoption of IFRS 9 is not expected to have an effect on the
Company’s reported net loss or cash flows.

IFRS 15: This standard addresses the accounting and disclosure requirements for revenue contracts with customers.
The effective date is January 1, 2018. There will be no impact on the Company’s financia statements presented herein
upon the future adoption of IFRS 15 as the Company has no revenue from customers. Management is in the process of
evaluating the effect the License Agreement will have on the Company’s financial statementsin the future, including
the effects of adopting IFRS 15. Until the evaluation is completed, an estimate of the future effect the License
Agreement will have on the Company’s financia statements cannot be made.

IFRS 16: This standard introduces a single |essee accounting model and requires alessee to recogni ze assets and
liabilities for all leases with aterm of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lesseeis
required to recognize aright-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and alease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. IFRS 16 has an effective date of January 1, 2019. The impact on
the Company’ s financial statements from the future adoption of IFRS 16 will be determined based on facts and
circumstances that exist at the time of adoption that cannot be predicted currently. As of December 31, 2016, the
Company only has |eases with terms of less than twel ve months and therefore had the adoption of IFRS 16 occurred at

19



December 31, 2016 the effect on the Company’s financial statements would be immaterial. Management’s current
expectationisthat IFRS 16 will be adopted by the Company when mandated.

Section 2 Resultsfor the Year

2.1 Staff Costs

The Company’s staff costs, that are expensed as incurred, for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
are asfollows:

2016 2015
UsSD ‘000 USD ‘000
Wages and SAl@ri€5.....ccvveiierere e 981 670
Social taxes and DENEFITS........oooeriree e 107 1
Share-based payment (NOt€ 2.2).......cccccveveeveeiniiesiesie e 9,665 6,598
LI TS 10,753 7,269
Staff costs are included in the statement of profit or loss as
follows:
2016 2015
UsSD ‘000 USD ‘000
Research and devel opment COSES ........ccvvveviiveien i 7,121 4,272
Genera and adminiStrative COSES........ovvierirneneeereec e 3,632 2,997
TOMA e e 10,753 7,269

Key management consists of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”). The
Company’s CFO is compensated by Forward Pharma USA, LLC. Although the CFO is not directly compensated by
the Company, and therefore excluded from the above tabl e, the table below includes the compensation of the CFO.

2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000

Compensation to the Company’ s key management

Short-term employee benefits........oovoervveiereseereee s 670 718
Share-based compensation (NOte 2.2) .......cccecvvveviviiesieesesceeseenan 3,290 5,500
Total compensation paid to key management personnd .................. 3,960 6,218

2.2 Share-based Compensation

The Company has entered into various share-based payment arrangements through the granting of equity awardsin
the form of warrants, options or deferred shares (collectively “equity awards’) to employees, consultants (who
provide services similar to employees), non-empl oyee consultants and members of the board of directors. Equity
awards have been granted under either the Company’ s 2014 Omnibus Equity I ncentive Compensation Plan (the
“Equity Plan”) or outside the Equity Plan. Outstanding warrants and options have exercise prices stated in DKK or
USD. Options and warrants that have exercise pricesin DKK have been trandated to USD.

The terms of the Equity Plan provide for the board of directors, or acommittee appointed by the board of directors, to
grant equity awards (as defined bel ow) to employees, consultants and directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. At
the inception of the Equity Plan there were 3.1 million ordinary shares available for grant under the Equity Plan.
Awards can bein the form of ordinary shares, deferred shares, restricted shares or share options with terms and
vesting conditions determined by the board of directors. The Equity Plan contains anti-dilution provisionsin the event

20



of astock split or similar corporate transaction. As of December 31, 2016, 1.2 million shares were available for future
grant under the Equity Plan.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, 664,000 stock options were granted to certain employees and board
members. The option exercise prices per share range from $12.75 to $21.95. Vesting terms are pro rata over either a
three or four year term, however, each award contains a provision whereby the option holder cannot exercise prior to a
defined date. Vesting and exercise periods are accelerated in the event thereis a change in control, as defined in the
option award agreements. Stock options expire six years from the date of grant. At the date of grant, the aggregate fair
value of options granted in 2016 totaled $8.2 million.

In June 2016, 89,000 warrants (“June 2016 Warrants’) were granted to a consultant. The June 2016 Warrants replaced
an equal number of expiring warrants. The exercise price of the June 2016 Warrants is the same as the expiring
warrants, or $0.56. The June 2016 Warrants were fully vested upon grant and expire on July 1, 2018. For financia
reporting purposes, the June 2016 Warrants were accounted for as a modification of the expiring warrants to extend
the expiration date. The financia statement impact of the modification of the June 2016 Warrants was not material.

During May 2016, 130,000 warrants were exercised yielding proceeds to the Company of $112,000. The fair value of
an ordinary share of the Company on the date of exercise was $18.60.

During October 2016, the Company entered into a four year consulting agreement with amember of the board of
directors. The consulting agreement provides for the granting of 13,000 deferred shares as full compensation for
servicesto be rendered. The deferred shares vest in equal increments annually over four years. Unvested deferred
shares vest immediately in the event there is a change in control as defined in the award agreement. At the date of
grant, the aggregate fair value of the deferred shares totaled $275,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, 706,000 stock options were granted to certain employees, board members
and consultants (who provide services similar to employees) and 500,000 stock options were granted to non-employee
consultants. The options granted to the non-empl oyee consultants are discussed in more detail below. The option
exercise prices per share, excluding the 500,000 options awarded to the non-employee consultants, range from $20.90
t0 $36.85. Vesting terms are pro rata over either athree or four year term, however, each award contains a provision
whereby the option holder cannot exercise prior to adefined date. Vesting and exercise periods are accelerated in the
event thereis achange in control, as defined in the option award agreements. Stock option expiration dates vary with
the latest expiration date being six years from the date of grant. At the date of grant, the aggregate fair value of options
granted in 2015, excluding the fair value of the options granted to the non-employee consultants, total ed

$10.2 million.

As discussed above, during the year ended December 31, 2015 atota of 500,000 options were granted to

non-empl oyee consultants of the Company (“ Consultant Options”). 250,000 Consultant Options have an exercise
price of $28.26 and the balance have an exercise price of $141.30. The Consultant Options expire on May 15, 2020
and vesting is over five years; however, the Consultant Options can only be exercised during the period from April 2,
2020 to May 15, 2020. Vesting and exercise are accelerated in the event thereis a change in control as defined in the
option award agreements. The Company’s board of directors holds a unilateral right to terminate the Consultant
Options for any reason at any time prior to vesting. The fair value of the Consultant Optionsis measured using the
Black Scholes model with inputs not materia ly different from those discussed below. Thefair value of the Consultant
Options is determined as services are rendered. As of December 31, 2016, 100,000 of the Consultant Options have
vested including 50,000 with an exercise price of $28.26. The fair value of the Consultant Options was computed
using the Black Scholes method and not based on the val ue of the services received. In reaching the decision to use
the value of the Consultant Options and not the value of the services, management considered the variability in the
nature, timing and extent of servicesto be provided by the non-employee consultants that will be significantly affected
by actions taken by parties who are not under the control of the Company. Accordingly, the value and timing of the
servicesto be received over the service period cannot be estimated reliably and therefore the value of the Consultant
Options was deemed to be a more accurate measure of the consideration paid to the non-employee consultants for
services rendered. The weighted average fair value per Consultant Option applied for recognition of an expense
during each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $6.04 and $11.88 respectively. The total expense
recognized during each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $892,000 and $2.0 million respectively.
There were no Consultant Options outstanding prior to 2015.

In order to provide employees, including the Chief Executive Officer, consultants and a board member of the
Company and its subsidiaries with the ability to forgo exercising warrants or share options that were set to expire on
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or before January 1, 2016 (“Expiring Awards”), (i) the board of directors, during the year ended December 31, 2015,
approved the granting of 1,365,000 share options or warrants (“ Replacement Awards”) to replace 1,405,000 Expiring
Awards (1,316,000 Expiring Awards expired prior to December 31, 2015 and 89,000 expired on January 1, 2016) and
(ii) the Company’s shareholders, at the ordinary general meeting in April 2015, approved the extension of the period
during which holders may exercise 334,000 Expiring Awards (“ Extended Awards”). Further, in order to incentivize
holders of Expiring Awards to remain engaged with the Company, the board of directors, during the year ended
December 31, 2015, approved the granting of additional share options or warrants to holders of Expiring Awards to
subscribe for an aggregate of 362,000 ordinary shares (“ Additional Awards’). The Replacement Awards have
substantially similar terms as the Expiring Awards, except the expiration dates were extended to various dates, the
latest being March 2021. The expiration date for 167,000 of the Extended Awards was extended to June 2018, while
the expiration date for the balance of the Extended Awards was extended to November 2018. If individual holders
exercisetheir Expiring Awards, then the Replacement Awards and the Additional Awards held by such holders
provide for immediate expiration and cancellation of such Replacement Awards and the Additional Awards for no
compensation. Replacement Awards have the same exercise price as Expiring Awards ranging from $0.56 to $1.19
per share (based on the December 31, 2016 DKK to USD exchange rate). Replacement Awards are fully vested on the
date of grant while Additional Awards vest over aperiod of three years. Replacement Awards and Additional Awards
(except for 85,000 Replacement Awards) cannot be exercised prior to March 2018; however, Replacement Awards
and Additional Awards vest and can be exercised immediately in the event thereis a change in control, as defined in
the award agreements. The aggregate fair value of Replacement Awards and Additional Awards at the date of grant
totaled $6.8 million. The financia statement impact of the Extended Awards was not material.

A tota of 55,000 deferred shares were granted during 2015 including 5,000 to an employee and 25,000 to each of two
consultants. The employee' s deferred shares vested in July 2016 and the consultants deferred shares vest in equal
increments annually over afour year period. Unvested deferred shares vest immediately in the event thereis a change
in control as defined in the award agreement. At the date of grant, the aggregate fair value of the deferred shares
granted in 2015 totaled $1.4 million. On May 6, 2016, one of the consultants was el ected to the Company’ s board of
directors. See Note 5.1.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, 216,000 warrants were exercised yielding proceeds to the Company of
$153,000. The weighted average fair value of an ordinary share of the Company on the dates of exercise was $33.79.

The table below summarizes the activity for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 for equity awards
in the form of options and warrants and the weighted average exercise price (“WAEP”):

Share Optionsand Warrants:

Key Employees Non-
Management and Employee Total

Per sonnel Consultants Consultants Awards WAEP

No. ‘000 No. ‘000 No. ‘000 No. ‘000
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 .......ccccccvvevrvenennnn 1,058 1,796 — 2,854  $5.03
(€172 101 (o F S 178 528 500 1,206 $51.62
EXPIring AWardS.......cccocevevererenesierenreseseseseesesnenns (333) (983) — (1,316) $0.98
Replacement Awards..........ccceeveveeeeeereeece e, 423 942 — 1,365  $0.96
Additional AWards ........cccoeeeienieeeieneeeiene e 147 215 — 362 $30.13
EXEICISEA ...ccvi it — (216) — (216)  $0.70
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .........ccccoenneeee. 1,473 2,282 500 4,255 $20.39
(€172 101 (o F S 178 575 — 753 $15.00
EXPINiNg AWards.........cocoeveeennieiniennesenenisesieenennns (89) — — (89) $0.83
EXEICISEA ...ccvi it — (130) — (130) $0.86
Expired and forfeited.........ccccoovvrvnniereicnce e, — (99) — (99) $3.45
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 ...........cccoeu.ee.. 1,562 2,628 500 4,690 $20.77
Exercisable at December 31, 2016 1,042 1,712 100 2,854

The weighted average remaining contractud life of equity awardsin the form of options and warrants outstanding as
of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was 4.3 years and 4.9 years respectively.
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The table bel ow summarizes the range of exercise prices, after converting, where applicable, exercise prices that are
stated in DKK to USD, for outstanding equity awards in the form of options and warrants as of December 31, 2016
and 2015. Exercise prices disclosed below have changed from amounts previously reported as the result of achangein
the DKK to the USD exchangerate.

Range of exercise prices (per share) 2016 2015
No. ‘000 No. ‘000

PO56 10 BLL9 ...t 1,788 2,007
B7.3210 P21 ... s 214 214
BL2.7510 BL7.99 .. e 463 —
$20.90t0 B28.26 .....cceeieeeieeie et 1,304 1,104
B30.54 10 B3B.85 ...t e 671 680
BLAL.30 ettt e 250 250
TOA vttt 4,690 4,255

The tables below summarize the inputs to the model used to val ue key management, employee and consultant equity
awards as well asthe average fair value per option or warrant awarded or modified for each of the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Year ended December 31, 2016

DRV Lo (c aTo Y = o I ) OSSR 0

EXpected VOIELility (90) ...occviveveeeieresesesese e 73-79
RiSK-free iNtEreSt Fate (Y0) ...vvvvereerrereresieriereesiesteseeseeseeseeseenseseeseeneeeeseeeeseenes (1.2)to 1.8
Expected life of the equity award (YEars) .......ccceceeveeveeivenvnieesesseese e 4.0t05.0

SNAME PITICE eieeieeie ettt st s e s re e e e saebe e benaeenreens 16.42 USD to 21.95 USD
(S (oI TS Y o] = T 0.56 USD to 21.95 USD
MOTE] USE. ..ottt e e Black Scholes
Basis for determination of share PriCe.......ocvvvevrevereene e Quote on NASDAQ
Average fair value per option or warrant granted ($)......ccccceveeevevieieieieennas 11.82USD

Year ended December 31, 2015

DRV Lo (c aTo Y = o I ) OSSR 0

EXpected VOIELility (90) ...occvveveeerieresesiesese e eneens 69 - 76
RiSK-free iNtEreSt Fate (Y0) ...vvvvereererereesieriereestesteseeseeseeseeseeneeseeseeseeeeseeeeseenes (0.) to 1.7
Expected life of the equity award (YEars) ......ccceceeveeveeieenviieeneeseese e 35t05.0

S T T o] o= S 18.10 USD to 39.00 USD
EXEICISE PIICE oviceie ettt e e a e e s 0.57 USD to 36.85 USD
MOGE] USE.......oiiiiie ettt et et bbb e st Black Scholes
Basis for determination of share PriCe .......ocovvevverereene e Quote on NASDAQ
Average fair value per option or warrant granted ($)......cccccevveeeveveeieiveieennns 13.05USD

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company awarded 569,000 deferred shares (“Deferred Shares’) to the
Company’s Chief Financia Officer. The Deferred Shares give the holder no rights as a shareholder until the Deferred
Shares vest except for certain dividend rights. The Deferred Shares vest incrementally over four years with

accel erated vesting under certain situations including a change in control as defined in the deferred share agreement.
During each of July 2016 and April 2015, 142,000 Deferred Shares vested and were issued.
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The table bel ow summarizes the deferred share activity for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Deferred Shares:
Key Employees
M anagement and Total

Per sonnel Consultants Awards

No. ‘000 No. ‘000 No. ‘000
Outstanding at January 1, 2015.........cccceoceveivereerereeiseneenens 569 — 569
(€= 101 =0 RS S — 55 55
VEStE AN ISSUEH. ... (142) — (142)
Outstanding at December 31, 2015........cccovvveverrveirereennns 427 55 482
(€= 101 =0 RS 13 — 13
I 0 (= ) T 25 (25) —
VEStE AN ISSUEH. ... (142) — (142)
Outstanding at December 31, 2016..........cccoccveveveevreevesinenn 323 30 353

*) A consultant who was granted deferred shares in 2015 was elected to the board of directorsin 2016. See Note 5.1.

Share-based compensation for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 isincluded in the following
accounts:

2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Research and devel OpMENE COSES.......oovirrrireienire e e seese e se e eeneenes 6,392 3,990
General and adMiNISratiVE COSES ......viiiiiiiiiiiiiie it eaee e 3,273 2,608
INVESEMENE IN SUBSIAIAITES......ovii ittt sb e 4,623 6,943
LI - 14,288 13,541

Sgnificant estimation uncertainty regarding share based payments

Prior to the Company’s IPO, determining the initia fair value and subsequent accounting for equity awards granted to
the employees, consultants and directors required management to use many subjective assumptions including
estimating the fair value of the Company’ s ordinary shares. The subjective nature of the assumptions required
management to use significant judgment, and small changesin any individual assumption or in combination with
other assumptions could have yielded significantly different results. The most significant assumptions included the
following: estimated long-term cash flows of the Company discounted for the risk and uncertainty of successfully
developing and commercializing FP187; the expected period an equity award would be outstanding and the peer
group used to determine volatility. Before the Company’ s ADSs were quoted on an active market, the underlying
share price used in the valuation model was determined by applying a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model. The
expected future cash flows were based on strategic plans up until product launch and projections for future years.

Subsequent to the Company’ s IPO, determining the initial fair value and subsequent accounting for equity awards
continues to require significant judgment regarding expected life and volatility of an equity award; however, as a
public listed company thereis objective evidence of the fair value of an ordinary share on the date an equity award is
granted and therefore DCF valuations are no longer used. The expected life of an equity award is based on the
assumption that the holder will not exercise until after the equity award isfully vested and all restrictions on the
holders’ ability to dispose of the underlying ordinary shares expire. Actual exercise patterns may differ from the
assumption used herein. The expected volatility is based on peer group data and reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility over a period similar to thelife of the equity awardsis indicative of future trends, which may not
necessarily be the actua outcome. The peer group consists of listed companies that management believes are similar
to the Company in respect to industry and stage of development. Even with objective evidence of the fair value of an
ordinary share, small changesin any other individua assumption or in combination with other assumptions could
have yielded significantly different results. Since the Company’s ADSs are listed on NASDAQ), in the future, after
there has been an extended period of historical trading activity of the Company’s ADSs, management will determine
the fair value of an equity award using an option valuation model that incorporates the historical trading attributes of
the Company’s ADSsincluding volatility and the expected life of an equity award.
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2.3 1ncome Taxes

The major components of income tax for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Current income tax (expense) benefit ... (79) 336
Deferred income tax benefit.........cooere e 11,495 —
Incometax benefit reported in the statement of profit and loss........ 11,416 336

The current income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 primarily relates to a change in estimate of the
benefit obtained by Tech Growth’s utilization of the Company’s tax loss. Included in the current income tax benefit
for the year ended December 31, 2015 is an amount due to the Company for participating in the Tech Growth joint
taxation group of $158,000 (see “Joint Taxation Groups® below for additional information regarding Tech Growth).
Alsoincluded in the tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2015 is the favorable result from an application
made with the Danish tax authorities whereby the Danish tax authorities approved a refundable tax credit of $178,000
related to the Company’ s research and devel opment efforts after reducing the Company’ s Danish tax loss
carryforward.

Management concluded that at December 31, 2016 it was probabl e the Company would have taxable profits
in 2017, thereby enabling the Company to recognize certain deferred tax assetsthat historically did not meet the
criteriafor recognition. In reaching the conclusion to recognize deferred tax assets at December 31, 2016, numerous
judgments were made including the close proximity of the date the License Agreement was executed to December 31,
2016 and the magnitude of the Non-refundable Fee compared to the projected total expensesin 2017. The deferred tax
benefit recognized during the year ended December 31, 2016 was primarily related to net operating loss carryforwards
(“NOLs") that will be utilized in 2017. Taxable profits are not assured beyond the year ending December 31, 2017,
therefore, temporary differences that will be available to offset taxable profits after December 31, 2017 do not meet
the criteriafor financial statement recognition and therefore the related deferred tax assets have not been recognized.

The tax benefit recorded for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is reconciled as follows:

2016 2015
USD ‘000  USD ‘000

NEt (10SS) DEFOIETAX ...viiueiieeeieieecee sttt sre e nres (9,384) (51,401)
At the Company’s statutory inCome tax rate (*) .....ccoeeeveeverieenieenecieeese e (2,064) (12,079
Adjustments:
(Non-taxable) non-deductible transactions for tax purpoSeS .........ccocvvererereeriereeenns (4,738) 8,569
(Recognized) unrecognized deferred tax aSSetS.......covviivieeieiieeniee e (4,614) 3,352
Refundable taX Credit........vovieei e — (178)
At the effective income tax rate of 122% for 2016 and 1% for 2015..............c.c........ (11,416) (336)

*) The statutory tax rates for 2016 and 2015 were 22% and 23.5% respectively.

Deferred tax

The recognized deferred tax assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
USD‘000  USD ‘000

Net operating |0SS CarryfOrWardS..........covvevenire s ens 22,642 —
Share-based PAYMENT ........c.oiviiiiiiierese e et sreesaesraesrensee s 502 —
Acquired Patents (SEE DEIOW) .....ccuvviieieiriire e 55,870 —
Royalty Obligation (SEE DEIOW) ......cceieeire i e (65,181) —
L@ 141 ST TSRS PTUPTPTRUTRURPIURR (125) —
Total deferred income tax BEnefit...........coeoveiiiici i 13,708 —
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The table aboveincludes the tax effect of the acquired patents and associated know-how (collectively “Acquired
Patents”) transferred to the Company and the corresponding obligation to remit royalties (“Royalty Obligation”) in
accordance with the patent transfer agreement and addendum to the patent transfer agreement with Aditech Pharma
AG. See Note 5.2. The Acquired Patents represent an intangible asset that for Danish tax purposes can be amortized to
reduce future taxable income at the discretion of Management provided that in any one year amorti zation expense
cannot exceed one seventh of the assigned fair value. Future payments of royalties to Aditech Pharma AG will first
reduce the Royalty Obligation to zero and thereafter will be available to reduce future taxable income. In the event the
Royalty Obligation is not reduced to zero at the end of the life of the Acquired Patents, such amount would represent
taxable income for Danish tax purposes. The changes in the amount of the Acquired Patents and Royalty Obligation
from 2015 to 2016 is the result of a change in the exchange rate between the DKK and the USD and amortization
expense of the Acquired Patents taken for tax purposes for the year ended December 31, 2016.

The deferred tax benefit as of December 31, 2016 of $13.7 million is estimated to be utilized in the year ending
December 31, 2017.

The unrecognized deferred tax assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

December 31,
2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Tax effect of tax 10Ss carry forwards..........coocvvvevvenienenescee e — 5,515
Share-based PAYMENT .......ccvve it s e se e ene e e 1,907 3,507
Acquired Patents (SEE DEIOW)......cvcvierieerine et — 67,308
Royalty Obligation (SEEDEIOW) .....ccvve e — (67,308)
Other deferred taxes, Net 11ability........cccocevierire e — (131)
Unrecognized deferred tax aSSets, NEL.......cooceierererieneere e 1,907 8,891

The Company has the following unrecognized deductible temporary differences as of December 31, 2016, and 2015
respectively:

2016 2015
USD‘000  USD ‘000
Unused tax |0SSES......coeivereereiereereeie e, — 25,070
Deductible temporary differences regarding
share-based payment €tC. ........c.ccccovevvviesnennn 8,667 15,344

The Danish tax loss carry forwards have no expiry date. For Danish tax purposes, the Company’s ability to use tax
loss carry forwards in any one year is limited to 100% of the first $1.1 million of taxable income plus 60% of taxable
income above $1.1 million. Other deductible temporary differences are not subject to any restrictions. For Danish and
United States tax purposes, the Company’s United States subsidiary does not conduct atrade or businessand is
therefore deemed to be adisregarded entity. Accordingly, the United States subsidiary is not subject to income taxes
in the United States.

Joint Taxation Groups

During the period from January 19, 2013 to December 31, 2015, the Company was part of the Tech Growth joint tax
group. Under applicable provisions of the Danish taxation law, the Company was entitled to obtain refunds at the
prevailing tax rate from other entities within the Tech Growth joint taxation group who utilized tax losses of the
Company. Included in the tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2015 is the amount due to the Company for
participating in the Tech Growth joint taxation group of $158,000. During the year ended December 31, 2016, Tech
Growth amended a prior year tax return to reduce previoudy reported taxable income. The effect of the amended tax
return resulted in the Company recognizing a current income tax expense caused by Tech Growth utilizing less tax
losses of the Company.

A subsidiary of Tech Growth Invest ApS experienced a change in ownership on December 31, 2015. The effect of the
change in ownership resulted in the year ended December 31, 2015 being the final year in which the Company
received arefund equd to the tax benefit realized by Tech Growth Invest ApS and other entities within the joint
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taxation group who utilized the Company’s tax losses. On January 1, 2016, the joint taxation group with Tech Growth
ceased and the Company became part of anew Danish joint taxation group with NB FP Investment Genera Partner
ApS and Forward Pharma FA ApS. The Company remainsjointly and severaly liable with other entitiesin the Tech
Growth joint taxation group for Tech Growth's Danish tax liabilities during each of the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013. The Company isjointly and severally liable under the newly formed joint taxation group with
NB FP Investment General Partner ApS and Forward Pharma FA ApS for Danish tax liabilities for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

Sgnificant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets, including the tax base of tax loss carry-forwards, if management
assesses that these tax assets can be offset agai nst future positive taxabl e income. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. This judgment is made periodically after
considering current facts, circumstances, budgets and business plans as well as the risks and uncertainty associated
with the operations of the Company. As facts and circumstances change, adjustments to previously made estimates
will be madethat could result in volatility in reported operating results and the occurrence of unforeseen events could
have amaterial favorable or unfavorable effect on the financid statements of the Company.

As discussed herein, during the year ended December 31, 2016 the Company determined that previously unrecognized
deferred tax assets should be recognized asit is probabl e that the Company will have sufficient taxable incomein the
year ending December 31, 2017 to utilize deferred tax assets recognized at December 31, 2016.

Tax uncertainties

The Company’ stax returns are subject to periodic audit by the local tax authorities. Such audits could result in the tax
authorities disagreeing with the tax filing positions taken by the Company that would expose the Company to
additional taxes being assessed, including interest and pendlties, that could be materia. There are numerous
transactions between Forward Pharma A/S, Forward Pharma GmbH and Forward Pharma USA, LLC where the tax
authorities could challenge whether transfer pricing of such transactions were at arm’s length. The Company’s failure
to successfully support arm’s length pricing could result in additional taxes being assessed, including interest and
pendties, that could be material. As of December 31, 2016, there are no tax auditsin process nor has management
been notified of any pending tax audit. As of December 31, 2016, the tax years that remain open for audit by the tax
authorities include 2013 through 2016.

Section 3 Operating Assetsand Liabilities

3.1 Prepaid Expenses

December 31,
2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
INSUFBINCE. ... tveeeitieee et e e ettee e ettt e e st e e et ee e e sbeeeeesbeesabeessabaeeeabbeeesabeeesaneessasbesenrseenns 450 544
(@1 1= SRR 71 68
[0 [T 521 612
3.2 Other Receivables
December 31,
2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
A N I (== Az o 1= 250 311
ACCTUEH INTEESt INCOMIE ...ttt ettt s e s s re e s sbae s s eabeeessbaeseans 118 231
(011 QLTS A7 o] 1= — 10
LI ! 368 552




3.3 Equipment

Equipment

USD ‘000
Cost:
AL JANUANY 1, 2015 ...ttt ettt b e b e se b e b s b b e et et b et b et bebe e eeenea 5
ATGITIONS. ...t h et b e h e eh et be bt e b e bt s he bt bt Re b et Re b e b et e neenes —
At DECEMDBEY 31, 2015.......c ettt bbbt r et 5
Intercompany transfer (SEE DEIOW) ....cueoiiiie i e s 345
AGITIONS ...t h et b e b e bbbt ae e bt ebe s Re b bt s Re b et Re b e b et e neenes —
At DECEMDEY 31, 2016.......cceiieiieieieeet ettt bbb bbb r e r et 350
Accumulated Depreciation:
AL JANUANY 1, 2015 ...ttt ettt e e b e eb s eb b e et et b e e eb et bebe e neenea 5
Depreciation charge for the YEar........c.oveieee e —
At DECEMDEY 31, 2015.......c ettt bbb r et 5
Intercompany transfer (SEE DEIOW) ....c.eoviiie i e s 97
Depreciation charge for the YEar........c.oveeee e e —
At DECEMDEY 31, 2016.......eceiieiieeeieiet ettt bbb bbb et 102
Net book value:
At DECEMDBET 31, 2005.....c.eceiieiie ettt ettt sttt se et e e b se b et e et e e b e b et b e be e eeenen —
At DECEMDEY 31, 2016.......eceiieiieeeieiet ettt bbbt r e r e 248

On December 31, 2016, Forward Pharma GmbH transferred ownership of equipment (" Equipment”) to the Company.
Forward Pharma GmbH’ s cost and accumulated depreciation of the Equipment, on the date of transfer, was $345,000
and $97,000 respectively. Since the transfer of ownership of the Equipment occurred on December 31, 2016, the
Company did not recogni ze depreciation expense during the year ended December 31, 2016.

3.4 Trade Payables and Accrued Expenses

December 31,
2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Trade PAYADIES ... e 1,367 1,454
ACCIUEH EXPENSES ....c.veeeeeeeeee et eeestes e ssestesteseestestesaesaenteseessensesseseensesenssnnsesenssnnens 4,554 1,784
TOMA e e e ek b e bbb r e 5,921 3,238
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Section 4 Capital Structure, Financial Risks and Related Items

4.1 Equity and Capital Management

The following table summarizes the Company’ s share activity for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015:

Ordinary
shares

No. ‘000
JanUArY 1, 2005......cciiiii et 46,514
Issuance of deferred SharesS.........ocveieeeeeecee e 142
Exercise of warrantsfor Cash.........cccceeevviiiiiiie e 216
December 31, 2015.......cciicceeeecece et 46,872
Issuance of deferred Sares..........ocvveeveeceeseece e 142
Exercise of warrantSfor Cash.........ccovveveeeveeveeceee s 130
DeCemMbBEr 31, 2016.......ceeeieeeeeeee ettt 47,144

The Company has never paid adividend on ordinary shares.

During the year ended December 31, 2016 142,000 ordinary shares were issued upon the vesting of Deferred Shares,
and the receipt of the per share nomina value of $2,000, and 130,000 ordinary shares were issued in connection with
the exercise of warrants and the receipt of $112,000.

During the year ended December 31, 2015 142,000 ordinary shares were issued upon the vesting of Deferred Shares,
and the receipt of the nominal value of $2,000, and 216,000 ordinary shares were issued in connection with the
exercise of warrants and the receipt of $153,000.

Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management is to maximize shareholder value. The board of directors' palicy isto maintain an adequate capital base
S0 asto maintain investor, creditor and market confidence, and a continuous advancement of the Company’s
intellectua property and business. Cash, cash equivalents and financia assets are monitored on aregular basis by
management and the board of directorsin ng current and long-term capital needs. As of December 31, 2016,
the Company held cash, cash equivalents and available-for-sale financia assets totaling $136.9 million that will be
sufficient to fund operations beyond the next twelve months. The Company currently has no significant planned
capital expenditures.

4.2 Financial Risk Factors

The Company’s activities expose it to anumber of financid risks whereby future events, which can be outside the
control of the Company, could have amateria effect on the Company’s financial position and operating results. The
known risks include foreign currency, interest and credit risk and there could be other risks currently unknown to
management. The Company historically has not hedged its financial risks.

Foreign Currency

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain operations in Denmark, Germany and the United States that use the DKK,
the Euro and the USD as their functional currencies respectively. The Company conducts cross border transactions
where the functional currency is not always used, including purchases from major vendorsin the United Kingdom
where the British Pound (“GBP") is used. In addition, the Company, whose functiona currency isthe DKK, has
invested in debt instruments issued by the governments of Germany, the United Kingdom and the United States.
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Accordingly, future changes in the exchange rates of the DKK, the Euro, the USD and/or the GBP will expose the
Company to currency gains or losses that will impact the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and theimpact could be material. For each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the impact on the
Company’s statement of profit or loss of possible changesin the USD, GBP and Euro exchange rates against the
Company’s functiona currencies, USD, DKK and Euro, would be as follows.

Possible
Currency change 2016 2015
USD ‘000 USD ‘000
(U150 J +/-10% +7,124/-7,124 +8,068/-8,068
GBP ..o +/-10% +430/—430 +1,001/-1,001
EUro ..o +/—2% +1,212/-1,212 +1,424/-1,424

At thetime of receipt of the Non-refundable Fee, the Company’s USD cash holdings were over $1.25 billion while
having material obligations payable in DKK and Euros. The Company’ s management is currently evaluating different
means to deliver to shareholders an undetermined amount of capital. This may involve dividends, distributions, share
repurchases or other means. The fina determination asto any return of capital will be at the discretion of the
Company’s board of directors. Any such return of capital will be payable in Euros. The Company’s increased cash
reserves combined with material obligations payable in different currencies expose the Company to even greater risk
of lossin the future caused by movementsin foreign exchange rates. During February and March of 2017, to reduce
the Company’ s exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates, the Company converted $1.25 hillion into 1.17 hillion
Euros in anticipation of funding the Company’s DKK and Euro obligations as well asthe dividend, distribution , share
repurchase or other return of capital to shareholders.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company has invested in debt instruments issued by the governments of Germany, the United Kingdom and the
United States (collectively “Bonds”) that pay interest at fixed rates. The Bonds are classified as avail able-for-sale
financial assets resulting in unrealized fair value gains or losses being reported in other comprehensive income. The
effective yield on the Bondsis less than 1%. Should market interest rates rise in the future, it would have a negative
effect on the fair value of the Bonds, which could be material, and would result in arealized loss if a Bond was sold
before maturity. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the impact on the fair value of the Company’ s Bonds of a
possible increase or decrease in the interest rates would be as follows.

Denomination Currency Possible change 2016 2015

USD ‘000 USD ‘000
BUFO oo +/—1%-point —413/+413 —862/+862
GBP .. +/—1%-point =17/+17 —68/+68
USD it +/—1%-point —359/+359 —835/+835
Credit Risk

The Company’s credit risk is associated with cash held in banks and the Bonds. The Company does not trade financial
assets for specul ative purposes and invests with the objective of preserving capita by investing in adiversified group
of highly rated debt instruments.

For all periods presented here, the Company’ s cash and cash equivalents were held primarily at one bank in Denmark
with aMoody’ s long-term credit rating of Aa3. The Company’s available for sale financia assets are invested in
government issued debt instruments that are carried at fair value with maturities not exceeding three years. Moody’ s
credit rating of each of the individual governmentsis Aal or better. Subsequent to the receipt of the Non-refundable
Fee, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents has been diversified into three banks each with a Moody’ s long-term
credit rating of A1l or better.
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4.3 Financial Assetsand Liabilities

Recognized financial instruments
The Company has recognized the following categories of financial assets and liabilities.
Financial assets:

Other receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Other recalVables ... 368 368 552 552
TOAl e 368 368 552 552
Intercompany receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015
2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Intercompany receiVables .........coeoveeveeeeienineeirieens 113 113 675 675
TOAl oo 113 113 675 675

Available-for-Sale Financial Assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

The Company’s available-for-sale financial assetsinclude debt instruments issued by the governments of Germany,
the United Kingdom and the United States.

2016 2015

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

amount value amount value

UsD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Included in current assets (Level 1)
GEIMEANY ..ottt e e ere e s 41,821 41,821 17,223 17,223
United Kingdom .........ccooveoeririeeenieeeneseecese e 1,545 1,545 4,438 4,438
UNited SEALES......cveeeeieeiiiee s 37,459 37,459 19,976 19,976
TOA .o 80,825 80,825 41,637 41,637

At December 31, 2016, the face val ues of the German, United Kingdom and United States available-for-sale financia
assets were 39.3 million Euros, 1.2 million GBP and 37.5 million USD, respectively. At December 31, 2015, the face
values of the German, United Kingdom and United States available-for-sale financia assets were 15.6 million Euros,
2.9 million GBP and 20.0 million USD respectively.
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2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000

Included in non-current assets (Level 1)

GEIMANY ..ot — — 43,558 43,558
United Kingdom .........ccooveoerinieeienieeeseeeeese e — — 1,855 1,855
UNited SEALES......cveeeeieciiiee et — — 37,333 37,333
TOA oo e — — 82,746 82,746

At December 31, 2016, the Company did not hold non-current avail able-for-sale financial assets. At December 31,
2015, the face values of the German, United Kingdom and United States available-for-sale financia assets were
39.3 million Euros, 1.2 million GBP and 37.5 million USD, respectively.

Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Trade payableS.......ccccvevvieerecese e 1,367 1,367 3,238 3,238
Intercompany 10an ........cccveveeie e 3,424 3,424 — —
Tl v ee e en e ee s en e ene e 4,791 4,791 3,238 3,238

Fair value of trade payables is deemed to be their carrying amount based on payment terms that are generally 30 days.

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company entered into aloan agreement with Forward Pharma GmbH.

Theloan and any accrued interest is due on demand. Interest accrues at an annual rate of 2%. Theloanis
uncollateralized.

Financial instrument valuation hierarchy
Financial instruments recognized at fair value are allocated to one of the following valuation hierarchy levels:

e Level 1. Quoted (unadjusted) pricesin active markets for identical assets or ligbilities. The Company’s
available-for-sale financial assets meet the definition of Level 1.

e Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly. The Company did not have financial instruments allocated to this
level as of December 31, 2016 or 2015.

e Levd 3: Techniquesthat useinputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based

on observable market data. The Company did not have financial instruments allocated to this level as of
December 31, 2016 or 2015.

For all periods presented there were no transfers of financia instruments between Levels 1, 2 or 3.
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4.4 Investment in Subsidiaries

The Company’ s wholly-owned German, United States and Danish subsidiaries Forward Pharma GmbH, Forward
Pharma USA, LLC and Forward Pharma FA ApS, respectively, are reflected in the accompanying financia statements
as an investment carried at cost unless the investment has been impaired.

The investment account activity for each of the Company’ s wholly-owned subsidiary for the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

German us Denmark Total

USD 000 USD'000 USD 000 USD "000
Balance January 1, 2015 16,068 — — 16,068
Capital contribution 25,886 2,159 74 28,119
Share-based compensation 2,009 4,933 — 6,942
Trandation adjustment (1,597) (10) (1) (1,608)
Impairment loss (34,238) (6,137) — (40,375)
Balance December 31, 2015 8,128 945 73 9,146
Capital contribution 4,217 1,090 231 5,538
Share-based compensation 1,592 3,031 — 4,623
Trandation adjustment (1,784) 20 9 (1,755)
Recovery gain (impairment |0ss) 34,253 (4,191) (254) 29,808
Balance December 31, 2016 46,406 895 59 47,360

The Company’ s subsidiary in Germany experienced a net lossin 2015 that was significantly higher than the net |osses
itincurred in prior years and management at the time expected this negative trend to continue in the future. As aresult
of these factors, management performed an impairment test at December 31, 2015 to determine if the Company’s
investment in the German subsidiary was recoverable. The result of the impairment test indicated that the full
recovery of the Company’sinvestment in the German subsidiary was uncertain and accordingly an impairment lossis
reflected within the Company’ s profit and loss statement for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaling $34.2 million.
At December 31, 2016, Management performed an anaysis of Forward Pharma GmbH’ s projected operating results
and based on the analysis Management concluded that the Company’ sinvestment in the German subsidiary has a
recoverable value above the carrying value and as such reversed part of the impairment recognized in 2015. In
reaching this conclusion, the primary factor that was considered was Forward Pharma GmbH’ s estimated earningsin
2017 that will be sufficient to recover asignificant part of the impairment loss taken in 2015. Accordingly, the
carrying value of the Company’s investment in Forward Pharma GmbH was increased to $46.4 million. See Note 5.2.

The Company’s United States subsidiary supports the Company’ s operations by providing administrative services
such asinvestor relations, accounting and financial reporting services. The United States subsidiary has no current
revenues and does not expect revenues to be generated in the future. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, the United States subsidiary incurred net losses and expects to incur net losses for the foreseeabl e future.
Accordingly, management has determined that its investment in the United States subsidiary was impaired and
recognized an impairment loss for of $4.2 million and $6.1 million in the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
respectively.

The Company’s Danish subsidiary conducts research and devel opment, has no commercial products and is not
expected to have revenuesin the future. Accordingly, management has determined that itsinvestment in the Danish
subsidiary was impaired and recognized an impairment loss for of $254,000 in the year ended December 31, 2016.

Forward Pharma GmbH’ s registered officeis Leipzig, Germany. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, Forward
Pharma GmbH had a shareholder’ s equity of $12.6 million and $8.1 million respectively. The net income of Forward
Pharma GmbH for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $516,000. The net loss of Forward Pharma GmbH for the
year ended December 31, 2015 was $18.0 million.

Forward Pharma USA LLC’sregistered officeis New Y ork, USA. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, Forward

Pharma USA LLC had a shareholder’s equity of $895,000 and $945,000 respectively. The net loss of Forward Pharma
USA LLC for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $1.2 million and $1.4 million respectively.
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Forward Pharma FA ApS s registered office is Copenhagen, Denmark. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015 Forward
Pharma FA ApS had a shareholder’ s equity of $59,000 and $73,000 respectively. The net loss of Forward Pharma FA
ApS for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $253,000. Forward Pharma FA ApSwasin active prior to January 1,
2016.

Section 5 Other Disclosures

5.1 Related Party Transactions

The Company is controlled by NB FP Investment K/S and its affiliates (collectively “NB”). The ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Mr. Florian Schonharting who controls NB.

A director of the Company, who was elected to the board of directors on July 20, 2015, was a partner at the law firm
that provided Danish legal servicesto the Company prior to 2016 and is currently a partner at the law firm who
commenced providing Danish legal servicesto the Company on January 1, 2016 and continues to provide such
services. Remuneration paid to the law firms while the partner was a member of the Company’ s board of directorsis
referred to below as “Danish Legal Services’. The director serves on the Company’s board of directorsin his
individual capacity and not as a representative of any of the law firms.

Two directors of the Company, who were elected to the board of directors on May 6, 2016, each entered into afour-
year consulting agreement with the Company. One of the consulting agreements commenced in September 2015 and
the second during October 2016. The consulting agreements provided for the granting of 25,000 and 13,000 deferred
shares, respectively, as full compensation for services to be rendered. The deferred shares vest in equal increments
annually over four years from the date of grant. Unvested deferred shares vest immediately in the event thereis a
changein control as defined in the award agreement. Remuneration paid to the consultants, consisting only of share-
based compensation, while the consultants were members of the Company’ s board of directorsis referred to below as
“Consulting Services.”

Beginning in 2013, the Company was part of a Danish joint tax group with Tech Growth Invest ApS and subsidiaries
of Tech Growth Invest ApS. The Company’s participation in the Tech Growth Invest ApS Danish joint tax group
ceased on January 1, 2016. On January 1, 2016, the Company became part of a new Danish joint taxation group with
NB FP Investment General Partner ApS and Forward Pharma FA ApS. See Notes 2.3 and 5.2 for additional
information.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the
relevant year or as of yearend:

2016 2015

USD ‘000 USD ‘000
Purchase of serviceS from NB........cocccieivrineiee e 85 83
Danish Legal SENVICES ......civiieriire e sie e e e e e e e e 1,377 560
CONSUItING SEIVICES ....uveveeirecieeie ettt ne s 202 —
Amounts owed to related parties (excluding VAT) ...cccoveeveceveeeenene 723 217

Amounts owed by related parties...........ccoeveverieeciiiiienie e, — —
The above table excludes the related party transactions disclosed in Notes 4.4 and 5.2.
Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Amounts due related parties are uncollateralized and interest free. There have been no guarantees provided or received
for any related party receivables or payables.

Transactions with key management

The Company has not granted any loans, guarantees, or other commitmentsto or on behalf of any of the members of
the board of directors or key management personnel. Other than the remuneration including share-based payment
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relating to key management personnel described in Notes 2.1 and 2.2, no other significant transactions have taken
place with key management personnel during the period presented herein.

Compensation paid to the members of the board of directors

Compensation paid to members of the Company’ s board of directors, excluding share-based compensation, for each
of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 total ed $87,000 and $35,000 respectively. Share-based compensation
paid to members of the Company’ s board of directors for each of the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
totaled $2.2 million and $1.8 million respectively.

Patent transfer agreement between Aditech Pharma AG and the Company

In 2010, the Company entered into a patent transfer agreement and in 2017 entered into an addendum to the patent
transfer agreement with Aditech Pharma AG, arelated party, which is discussed in Note 5.2.

Major Shareholders
The following shareholders are as of the date of adoption of the financia statements registered as mgjor shareholders:

Nordic Biotech K/S, Copenhagen, Denmark

Nordic Biotech Opportunity Fund K/S, Copenhagen, Denmark
NB FP Investment K/S, Copenhagen, Denmark

Rosetta Capital |, LP, Wilmington, DE, USA

The Bank of New York Mellon, New York, NY, USA

5.2 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Leased office space

L ease contracts, where the lessor retains the significant risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the asset,
are classified as operating leases.

The Company |eases office space from NB under an agreement which can be cancelled on short notice. Lease
payments under the | ease agreement are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The
Company’ s remaining non-cancellabl e operating | ease commitment as of December 31, 2015, was not material .
Operating lease payments recognized as an expense are disclosed in Note 5.1 as purchases of servicesfrom NB.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are liabilities that arose from past events but whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of future events that in some situations are beyond the Company’ control.

During the period January 19, 2013 to December 31, 2015 (“Joint Taxation Period”), the Company was subject to a
Danish joint taxation group with Tech Growth Invest ApS and entities under Tech Growth Invest ApS's control. A
subsidiary of Tech Growth Invest ApS experienced a change in ownership on December 31, 2015. The effect of the
change in ownership resulted in the year ended December 31, 2015 being the final year that the Company was part of
the joint taxation group with Tech Growth. On January 1, 2016, the Company became part of a new Danish joint
taxation group with NB FP Investment Genera Partner ApS and Forward Pharma FA ApS. The Company remains
liable with other entities in the joint taxation group with Tech Growth Invest ApS for Tech Growth’s Danish tax
liabilities that can be allocated to the Joint Taxation Period and isliable with NB FP Investment General Partner ApS
and Forward Pharma FA ApS for Danish tax liahilities resulting from the newly formed joint taxation group.

Prior to the execution of the termination agreement discussed below, the Company was party to a patent license
agreement with Forward Pharma GmbH. The terms of the patent license agreement provided for, among other things,
the compensation due Forward Pharma GmbH for the research and devel opment services performed by Forward
Pharma GmbH for the benefit of the Company. The compensation payable to Forward Pharma GmbH in accordance
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with the patent license agreement would have included royalties and an exclusive license, limited to the German
market, as defined in the patent license agreement. On January 14, 2017, the Company and Forward Pharma GmbH
executed an agreement (the “ Termination Agreement”) that terminated the patent license agreement. In consideration
for terminating the patent license agreement, the parties agreed to negotiate in good faith to determine an amount due
Forward Pharma GmbH that would be based on arm’ s length principlesin accordance tax transfer pricing rules and
methods. The amount due Forward Pharma GmbH is still under negotiation. Any amount due to Forward Pharma
GmbH will be material. In addition to the patent license agreement and Termination Agreement discussed above, the
Company and Forward Pharma GmbH entered into a consultancy agreement effective November 1, 2016. In
accordance with the consultancy agreement, Forward Pharma GmbH provided servicesto the Company in
consideration for afee (“Fee”) that is computed based on Forward Pharma GmbH’ s costsincurred, as defined in the
consultancy agreement, plus a 5% markup. The Fee paid to Forward Pharma GmbH for the year ended December 31,
2016 was not material.

In 2004, a private Swedish company Aditech Pharma AB (together with its successor-in-interest, a Swiss company
Aditech Pharma AG, “Aditech”), controlled by NB, began devel oping and filing patents for, among other things,
formul ations and dosing regimens of DMF. In 2005, the Company entered into a patent license agreement with
Aditech to license this patent family from Aditech. In 2010, the Company acquired this patent family from Aditech
pursuant to a patent transfer agreement (“ Transfer Agreement”) that replaced the patent license agreement. Under the
Transfer Agreement, the Company obtai ned, among other things, Aditech’s patents and associated know-how related
to DMF formulations and delivery systems (the “ Aditech IP”). In connection with the License Agreement, the
Company and Aditech executed an addendum to the Transfer Agreement (“ Addendum”). The Addendum clarified
certain ambiguities with respect to the compensation due Aditech in the event the Company would enter into the
License Agreement and also provided for Aditech to waive certain rights under the Transfer Agreement. The
Addendum specifies that Aditech will receive 2% of the Non-refundable Fee (or $25 million) and is entitled to
additional compensation should the Company receive royalties from Biogen under the License Agreement. The
additional compensation dueto Aditech will be determined based on whether Biogen has an exclusive or a co-
exclusive license with the Company (on a country-by-country basis). If royalties are paid to the Company while
Biogen has an exclusive license, Aditech will be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to 2% of the same base
amount with respect to which the Company's royalty percentage is calculated, accruing from the same period of time
as any royalty payment payable by Biogen to the Company (prior to taking into account taxes, duties and VAT, if
any). If Biogen has a co-exclusive license, Aditech will receive a cash payment equal to 20% of the royalty remitted to
the Company by Biogen and any third party to which the Company may assign its United States co-exclusive rights.
Should the Company not assign its United States co-exclusive rights to athird party but instead utilize the United
States co-exclusive rights to develop a DM F Formulation, the Company will, asit was aso the case prior to entering
into the Addendum, be required to pay Aditech aroyalty of 2% of net sales of such aproduct. Aditech is considered to
be arelated party of the Company due to control over Aditech by NB.

5.3 Events after thereporting period
Subsequent to December 31, 2016 there were no events that were required to be reported except the License

Agreement and the PTAB decision discussed on pages 12 and 13, the Termination Agreement with Forward Pharma
GmbH discussed in Note 5.2 and the Addendum to the Aditech Transfer Agreement discussed in Note 5.2.
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